

D-Lib IST-2001-32587 Digital Library Competence Center

Self-Publishing Testbed – Report

D1.1.1

Deliverable Type: REPORT Number: D1.1.1 Nature: Public Contractual Date of Delivery: month 10 Actual Date of Delivery :month 6 Task WP1.1

Name of responsible: Costantino Thanos, ISTI-CNR

Authors: M. Bruna Baldacci, Stefania Biagioni, Carlo Carlesi, ISTI-CNR

contact info stefania.biagioni@isti.cnr.it

Abstract

This report details the organization of the first course on self-publishing and the manuals written for and distributed at the course itself. The complete documentation has been made available to the public through the D-Lib Center web site (<u>http://dlibcenter.iei.pi.cnr.it/</u>).

Executive Summary

The course on self-publishing has started in April 2002 and it will be repeated till May of year 2003. Registration is requested as the maximum number of participants for each course is 10 persons.

The course on Self Publishing: Scholarly Publication has been held in the following dates: 10-11 April 2002 22-23 April 2002 8-9 May 2002 6-7 June 2002

The aim of the course is to facilitate moving from the current centralised, discrete publishing model, to a distributed, continuous, self-publishing model. Therefore, the D-Lib Center will make available to scholarly communities an advanced operational digital library which supports highly improved models of scientific information dissemination and access, i.e., the ERCIM Technical Reference Digital Library (ETRDL) that contains the scientific production (technical reports) of the members of the ERCIM, the European Research Consortium for Informatics and Applied Mathematics.

ETRDL offers a complete digital library service covering the needs of three types of users: authors of technical reports, information seekers, and digital library administrators. The services offered include functionality for simple and advanced search facilities; on-line controlled submission and subject classification of documents; updating and deletion of documents; and multilingual interfaces. At the same time, the system is flexible enough; a common set of core criteria guarantees interoperability between collections but there is room for differentiation at the local level. This means that the <u>ETRDL</u> system is defined at both the ERCIM and the local institution levels: the ERCIM collection provides common services, while each local institution customises these services, as desired, to reflect local needs.

Documentation available on the D-Lib web site:

ETRDL Search and Browse Service : User Guide

ETRDL Administration Service : User Guide

ETRDL Submit Service : User Guide

Table of Contents

Table of Contents	3
1 ETRDL Search and Browse Service : User Guide	4
2 ETRDL Administration Service : User Guide	
3 ETRDL Submit Service · User Guide	43
	15



ETRDL Search and Browse Service User Guide

Maria Bruna Baldacci Stefania Biagioni Carlo Carlesi

ISTI - CNR

ETRDL is a digital library management system that provides access to a distributed collection of digital documents, consisting of a set of the local collections. These are published by the institutions participating in the digital library and are maintained on local servers.

ETRDL functionality regards searching and browsing ERCIM collections to retrieval existing documents, submitting new documents in a specific collection and administer the ERCIM collections via a Web user interface. The aim of this document is to present an user guide for the information seekers that want to browse the ETRDL collections and search documents in one or more selected collections..3

D-Lib – The Digital Library Competence Center is funded by the IST Programme of the European Union (project no. IST-2001-32587). Scientific coordinator: ISTI-CNR (Pisa, Italy).



Table of Contents

1 INTRODUCTION	7
2 TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS	8
3 ACCESS TO ERCIM TECHNICAL REFERENCE DIGITAL LIBRARY	9
3.1 NCSTRL COLLECTION	
3.2 ERCIM COLLECTION	11
3.3 LOCAL COLLECTION	11
3.4 THE MULTILINGUAL USER INTERFACE	12
3.5 THE ETRDL ON-LINE HELP	13
4 ETRDL SERVICES	15
4.1 ETRDL METADATA	15
4.2 SEARCH SERVICE	15
4.2.1 Simple Search	16
4.2.2 Fielded Search	16
4.2.3 Direct Search	17
4.2.4 Rules for bibliographic keyword matching	17
4.3 RETRIEVED DOCUMENTS	17
4.4 BROWSE SERVICE	19
4.4.1 Browse by Authors	19
4.4.2 Browse by Years	19
4.4.3 Browse by Keywords	19
4.4.4 Browse by ACM codes and descriptors	.20
4.4.5 Browse by MSC codes and descriptors	20
5 REFERENCES	21

Table of pictures

FIGURE 3-1 THE CENTRALISED HOMEPAGE.	9
FIGURE 3-2 CNR HOMEPAGE	10
FIGURE 3-3 NCSTRL, ERCIM AND LOCAL COLLECTIONS	10
FIGURE 3-4 CHOOSE LOCAL LANGUAGE USER INTERFACE.	13
FIGURE 3-5 THE ITALIAN VERSION OF THE ETRDL HOMEPAGE AT CNR SITE	13
FIGURE 3-6 ETRDL HELP ON LINE AND DOCUMENTATION. THE HOMEPAGE	14
FIGURE 3-7 SEARCH PROCEDURE HELP ON LINE	15
FIGURE 4-1 THE ERCIM FIELDED SEARCH FORM	16
FIGURE 4-2 SEARCH RESULTS.	18
FIGURE 4-3 DISPLAY OF A SELECTED DOCUMENT.	18
FIGURE 4-4 DISPLAY OF DOCUMENT THUMBNAILS	19
FIGURE 4-5 BROWSE THE NCSTRL COLLECTION.	19
FIGURE 4-6 BROWSE THE ERCIM COLLECTION	19

1 Introduction

ETRDL is a digital library management system that provides access to a distributed collection of digital documents, consisting of a set of the local collections. These are published by the institutions participating in the digital library and are maintained on local servers.

This guide gives information on the ETRDL SEARCH and BROWSE services. In the examples, reference is made to the ETRDL system as instantiated for the ERCIM-ETRDL digital library, that provides access to a distributed collection of grey literature (technical reports, theses, workshop proceedings, pre-prints, etc.) in the areas of Computer Sciences and Applied Mathematics produced by members of the ERCIM Consortium. ERCIM requirements have influenced the definition of the user interface as for what concerns subject description and classification of documents as well as subject searching.

The ERCIM-ETRDL digital library currently provides access to collections of the following ERCIM Institutions:

- CNR (Consiglio Nazionale delle Ricerche Italy),
- CWI (Centruum voor Wiskunde en Informatica The Netherlands),
- FORTH (Foundation of Research and Technology Hellas Greece),
- GMD (German National Research Center for Information Technology Germany),
- INRIA (Institut National de Recherche en Informatique et en Automatique France),
- SICS (Swedish Institute of Computer Science Sweden) and

• SZTAKI (Magyar Tudományos Akadémia - Számítástechnikai és Automatizálási Kutató Intézete - Hungary).

The aim of this guide is to provide a reference manual for the information seekers that want to retrieve documents from the ERCIM collections through ETRDL interface. Search and Browse services are accessible by any users.

The users of ETRDL are assumed to be moderately experienced with Web browsing. Instructions for how to use the ETRDL Search and Browse User Interface are organised in the following sections:

• Technical requirements: what the user needs to access to ETRDL.

• How to access to the ETRDL: the collections description and user interface characteristics.

• The ETRDL services: ETRDL metadata, how to retrieve document using the search service and how to explore the ETRDL collections using the browse service.

2 Technical Requirements

The user can access ETRDL via Web, this means that he/she can use which kind of computer and operating system you prefer. However, to search documents and browse ETRDL collections the user must have:

- Internet access availability
- some knowledge of Web browsing

• a Web browser such as Netscape Navigator or MS Internet Explorer having JavaScript capabilities.

As ETRDL documents have different file format (PostScript, PDF, text, HTML, TIFF) the user needs additional tools to display documents such as:

- PS viewer for PostScript documents,
- Adobe Acrobat Reader for PDF documents,
- TIFF viewer for TIFF images.

3 Access to ERCIM-ETRDL Digital Library

ETRDL provides the access to a distributed collection, consisting of the set of the local collections. These are maintained on the local servers of each partner institution. This has comported the implementation of two levels of Homepages. For the ERCIM-ETRDL digital library, a centralised access point has been provided to the system through the Web site http://www.iei.pi.cnr.it/DELOS/EDL/ETRDL_C.html, whereas a local homepage is installed on each local server.



Figure 3-1 The centralised homepage.

The user who accesses the system through the centralised homepage (see Figure 3-1) can access a local server by clicking one of the Institution logos which are shown in the main picture or he/she can use the Institution hyperlink in the left frame (at present FORTH and CWI servers are not accessible). For example if the user clicks the CNR logo or hyperlink he/she accesses to the CNR local server. In Figure 3-2 the CNR local homepage is shown.



Figure 3-2 CNR homepage.

The local homepage interface caters simultaneously for two user classes: information seekers and information providers by offering two main options: search/browse any collection (these services are explained below); submit/withdraw a document to/from a local collection. From the local homepages, the search and browse functions can be activated over the ERCIM collection, or over the collection(s) of the local institution (the collections are described below); access to NCSTRL collection is presently denied. Note that local collections are disjoint sub-sets of the ERCIM collection (see Figure 3-3).

NCSTRL -**‡ETRDL**-**‡**CNR – SICS – INRIA

Figure 3-3 NCSTRL, ERCIM and local collections.

In each case, the user is not only accessing a different collection (or sub-collection), but is provided with a different perspective on the information, depending on the functions that have been implemented at that particular level, this means that ETRDL services are specialised depending on the particular collection.

3.1 NCSTRL collection [NOTE: this collection is presently not accessible]

NCSTRL (pronounced "ancestral") is an international collection of computer science research reports and papers made available for non-commercial use from a number of participating institutions and archives. Some of the documents in NCSTRL are part of the technical report collections of participating institutions. For the most part, NCSTRL institutions are universities that grant PhDs in Computer Science or

Engineering, with some industrial or government research laboratories. Other documents are contents of other document archives that participate in the NCSTRL technical infrastructure. NCSTRL stands for Networked Computer Science Technical Reference Library.

3.2 ERCIM collection

The ERCIM collection consists of all kinds of grey literature produced by the participating ERCIM Institutions (technical reports, proceedings of conferences or workshops, theses, project deliverables, etc.) and is managed by a set of interoperating servers. At present, ETRDL server sites have been set up at five of the seven participants in the ERIM-ETRDL project (see Table 3-1). The user that accesses to the ERCIM collection perceives it as a federation of collections. Each collection is composed of the documents produced by a single ERCIM Institution (publishing authority) except for the CNR collection that it is a federation of collections too.

Institutions	Server URL	Server Physical location
	http://exlibris.ian.pv.cnr.it	CNR-IAN
	http://dienst.cib.na.cnr.it	CNR-IC
CNR (Italy)	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
	http://dienst.iesi.ba.cnr.it	CNR-IESI
	http://dienst.ifcai.pa.cnr.it:8080	CNR-IFCAI
CWI (The Netherlands)	Not available	
GMD (German)	http://ncstrl.gmd.de:80/Dienst/htdocs/index.html	GMD
FORTH (Greece)	Not available	
INRIA (France)	http://www-ncstrl.inria.fr/Dienst/htdocs/index.html	INRIA
SICS (Sweden)	http://dienst.sics.se	SICS
SZTAKI (Hungary)	http://www.szataki.hu:8000	MTA- SZTAKI

Table 3-1 ERCIM servers.

3.3 Local collection

A local collection consists of all kinds of grey literature produced by a single ERCIM Institution. A local collection can be composed of sub-collections, for example the CNR collection is composed of fifteen CNR Institutions (see the Table 3-2).

Institutions	Server URL	Server Physical location
Area della Ricerca (Palermo)	http://dienst.ifcai.pa.cnr.it:8080	CNR-IFCAI
Istituto CNUCE (Pisa)	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
Istituto di Analisi Numerica (Pavia)	http://exlibris.ian.pv.cnr.it	CNR-IAN
Istituto di Cibernetica (Napoli)	http://dienst.cib.na.cnr.it	CNR-IC
Istituto di Elaborazione dei Segnali e delle Immagini (Bari)	http://dienst.iesi.ba.cnr.it	CNR-IESI
Istituto di Elaborazione della Informazione (Pisa)	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
Istituto di Fisica Cosmica con Applicazioni all'Informatica (Palermo)	http://dienst.ifcai.pa.cnr.it:8080	CNR-IFCAI
Istituto di Linguistica Computazionale (Pisa)	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
Istituto di Matematica Computazionale (Pisa)	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
Istituto di Ricerca sulle Onde Elettromagnetiche (Firenze)	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
Istituto di Studi sulla Ricerca e sulla Documentazione Scientifica (Roma)	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
Istituto di Tecnologie Didattiche e Formative (Palermo)	http://dienst.ifcai.pa.cnr.it:8080	CNR-IFCAI
Istituto per le Applicazioni Telematiche (Pisa)	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
Istituto per la Matematica Applicata (Genova)	http://exlibris.ian.pv.cnr.it	CNR-IAN
Istituto per le Applicazioni della Matematica e dell'Informatica (Milano)	http://exlibris.ian.pv.cnr.it	CNR-IAN

Table 3-2 CNR servers.

3.4 The multilingual user interface

The ETRDL has a bilingual user interface, as most local servers maintain interfaces in English and in the local language. When the user accesses an ETRDL local homepage the system shows him/her the English user interface. Depending on the local server selected, the user are given a choice of language. To switch to the local language user interface he/she must click on the hyperlink below the title of the homepage. (see Figure 3-4).

CIIR Italian National Council of Research		ERCIM European Research Consortium for Informatics and Mathematics		NCSTRL Networked Computer Science Technical Paterence Library
ERCIM	Technica	I Reference Digita	I Library	/
Welcome to the ERCIM Technical Reference Digi DELIDS participate in ETROL: CNR, CWI ETROL	ital Library (ETRD	DL), ETRDL is an activit	_	

Figure 3-4 Choose local language user interface.

For example, if the user accesses to an Italian CNR server he/she can switch to the Italian homepage that appears as shown in Figure 3-5.

für Lit Line im Ger aff Bastruite &	ananata (168 Lacaton) Pap// Jend H(p) (n.)	e week tool		S C/ Wet Hand
	po Platomale delle a, fitula	Discost Discostante Controlity Nationalities and Melliness	: 🐔	CSINL Avented Computer Deserve estated Reference Library
E	RCIM Techr	nical <mark>R</mark> eference <mark>E</mark>	Digital Lib	rary
		Laurana 1		
Serveral total pagna de serveral estada la culta CAL PORTEL ANA TURICA e la megoneta D	Ricerca / Bro Ricerca / Bro Ricerca / Bro Ricerca / Bro	e Deput Group (1990), FIEL ou indu- suite source in NCSTRL owse in ERCIM owse nella collezione 1	ende anven de Crapp ragy (ACCERE) Occale	or a Lumois DELOS Da
	<u>Presenta</u> un o Segnala un d	documento da inserire ocumento da eliminare	 •	
<)))	VIELP) On Line	Â	- mil
2 allo	Washing of Street and Station	dra	1.140	

Figure 3-5 The Italian version of the ETRDL homepage at CNR site.

3.5 The ETRDL on-line help

ETRDL on line help is available by clicking on the "HELP" button at the bottom of the homepage (see Figure 3.5). This documentation is directed to four different kind of users: the system administrators, the digital library administrators, the information seekers and the information providers. System administrators are involved in the installation and configuration of the system and digital library administrators are involved in the management of the ETRDL documents (Figure 3-6).



Figure 3-6 ETRDL help on line and documentation. The homepage.

During the search session users can access the help document directly from the search page as shown in Figure 3-7. Depending on the chosen language for the interface the user can access the on-line helps either in English or local language.

Re Edi Vew So Examination	Hdp
Back Fill Related	Anne Seant Helsoape Riv Security
ERCIN	A Technical Reference Digital Library
	ERCIM Collection WEERDL - How to Search a Document in the ERCIM Digital Literate - Networks
Simple Search Enter one or more term in the " help, please click here	ETRDL - How to Search a Document in the ERCIM Digital Library
Term(s):	If you began your search by cholong on the "Search / Browse NCSTEL collection" option of the system homepage, the ample search will be performed over the entire NCSTEL collection. If you began your search by choking on the Search / Browse EECIM collection' option of the system homepage, the ample search will be performed over the entire EECIM collection. Otherwise, if you have selected a local collection, then the sample search will be effective only on this local collection (which may contain sub-collections)
Fielded Search	You can search for documents with either a simple search , a fielded search,
Title: Doouner	• or a first search 🗾 📶 🚜 🕬 🖬 🤣

Figure 3-7 Search procedure help on line.

4 ETRDL Services

There are three main classes of ETRDL services:

- 1 Search and browse
- 2 submission/withdrawal of documents
- 3 DL administration

The ETRDL *search and browse service* offers functionality such as subject searching and browsing, moreover provides users with a basic cross-language search functionality. The *submit/withdraw service* aims at assisting the authors by providing facilities to classify their documentation (using classification schemes for both computer science and the mathematics) quickly, easily and correctly. The *administration service* assists the librarians by providing mechanisms to manage the digital documentation efficiently.

In this document search and browse services are described. The search and browse services are different depending on the collection selected (NCSTRL, ERCIM or local). The user can choose to search over the entire ERCIM collection or select one or more specific Institution (publishing authority) to restrict the information space. Indeed, the browse service allows to explore a single publishing authority: this helps the user to realise which kind of information he/she can retrieve from a certain publishing authority.

For more information about the submit and the administration services please refer to Submission and Administration guides, respectively.

4.1 ETRDL Metadata

In the ERCIM and Local collections each document has a common metadata description associated. This description is based on the Dublin Core metadescription standard.

Title, author and abstract are the basic metadata elements used by search and browse services. The full ERCIM-ETRDL metadata set comprehends the following additional elements: abstract in local language and its language, subject (free keywords, ACM and MSC codes/descriptors), type, year and language of the document.

The user can employ the ACM Computing Classification [ACM98] and/or the AMS Mathematics Subject Classification [MSC91], and/or free keywords to represent subject terms for document classification during the submission procedure and for retrieval when querying the system.

The ACM and AMS schemes are accessible on-line and can be browsed during both retrieval and submission; codes with associated descriptors can be selected and inserted in the appropriate fields.

Authors must enter codes/descriptors from at least one classification. Searches are performed on all three fields by default.

4.2 SEARCH service

ETRDL offers three kinds of search service to satisfy the needs of different kinds of information seekers: novice users, expert users and librarians. Information seekers can search for documents with either a:

- simple search,
- a fielded search,
- or a direct search.

4.2.1 Simple Search

Simple search is the first approach to query the ETRDL collections. This service is simple to use and similar to the most popular search engines functionality. Simple search consists of a single field in which the query terms are entered and two buttons: one to activate the search, the other to clear the field of previously entered values. The query can consist of one or more words. The terms entered in this field are searched in all indexed bibliographic fields and are always "Ored " together. The search request will be performed over all publishing authorities of the selected collection (NCSTRL, ERCIM or local).

4.2.2 Fielded Search

The fielded search form for the ERCIM/Local collection has four logical components:

• The bibliographic fields: Title, Author, Abstract and Abstract in other language with a selector to specify the language, Subject. The selector for the language of the second abstract is only operating if a value is entered in the other abstract field.

- Two radio buttons to specify whether the values entered in the fields should be "ANDed" or "ORed".
- Three selectors to refine the search according to Type, Year, Language.

• A menu to select one or more collections on which to perform the search, and a check box to select all collections.

The following picture shows the ERCIM fielded search form (Figure 4-1). By default, the local fielded search form is equal to the ERCIM one except for the collections list. By the way each institution can customise it to match its own requirements. This is true also for the other local services.

+1= \$ 110	(Alexandra provid 1997) (eq. 2012) (Sparin Sparin areas and large we	Cit shetar
ilded Se	sarch where of the fully below There and fully for any fully charge shift have	
Title	1	
Anthonyac		
	Tright.	
Alabart.	Otini kanganga [All]	
Balgertinis	Table Pier Exploration of Contraction for fairs. ACM Construction Classification System of AMS Mellinguetics Statistics Classification. Society Automation	
ini quanta	lateres Salas () AND () OR	
the second second	with write will not to more of the original to being	
- (74)	2) Test Language (All 2)	
	And and a second se	
COD 21 al	reductions from the following list.	
CVI - Gent	new root Winkowsky wa Information	
DED - OPPN	an Matimaal Research Gender for Indonmation Terlaningy	er murch all rallertions 🛃
TANKA TAN	TATUS BELLUTES OF DOCUMPTING ON ADDRESS OF THE DESIGNATION AND ADDRESS OF THE DESIGN O	

Figure 4-1 The ERCIM fielded search form.

The ERCIM/Local user interface has two buttons: the first starts the search and the second clears the values entered in the fields.

Search criteria are based on the following rules:

1) To specify search criteria based on bibliographic fields, it is necessary to fill in at least one of the keyword fields listed below and activate either the AND or the OR button to determine the relationship between the fields. The default value is OR.

2) Words entered in any single bibliographic field are ANDed by default. Other criteria can be used according to the rules specified in the *Rules for bibliographic keyword matching* paragraph.

3) The field semantics available in the fielded search is the following:

• Author, Title, Abstract have a obvious means

• Local Abstract - Words in the local language abstract of a document. The user can specify a language otherwise the terms entered will be matched with all possible languages other than English. The selector for the language of the second abstract is only operating if a value is entered in the local abstract field.

• Subject - Subject search is possible using:

• Free keywords, or

• Codes/descriptors of the ACM (Association for Computing Machinery) Computing Classification System (CCS), Version 1998, or

• Codes/descriptors of the AMS (American Mathematical Society) Mathematics Subject Classification (MSC), Version 1991.

As far as possible, the user should use standard vocabulary from the discipline. As the CCS allows the use of proper names as "implicit" descriptors, he/she may enter names of programming languages (e.g., "C++") or of people.

4) If the user wishes to refine the search results according to type, year, or language, he/she has to fill in one or more of the following fields:

- Language Select a language from the pulldown menu.
- Type Select a type from the pulldown menu.
- Year Enter a year (e.g.: 1998).

The search criteria will be rejected if the user does not enter a value in at least one bibliographic field and select at least one collection.

4.2.3 Direct Search

Direct search consists of a text entry field in which the unique document identifier can be entered to access that document directly and two buttons: one to active the search, the other to clear the field of previously entered value. The use of this kind of search is directed especially to the librarian users because it need the knowledge of the document identifier.

4.2.4 Rules for bibliographic keyword matching

Words that the user enters in any bibliographic keyword field (Author, Title, Abstract, Abstract in other language, Subject) are matched to bibliographic entries according to the following rules:

1) Each string that the user enters matches any word in the respective field that begins with the respective string. For example, the string "comp" matches "computer", "computation", "comprehensive", etc.

2) Words entered in the same field are "ANDed" by default. For example, if you enter "computer vision" in the abstract field, the search will return documents that have both the words "computer" and "vision" in their abstracts.

3) The user may also use logical connectors AND and OR explicitly within fields. For example, if the user enters "robotics or vision" in the abstract field, the search will return documents that have the word "robotics" or "vision" in their abstracts. If the user enters "robotics and vision" in the abstract field, the search will return documents that have both the word "robotics" and "vision" in their abstracts. Finally, the user may use parentheses to group words. For example, if the user enters "Gries or (Teitelbaum and Field)" in the author field, the search will return documents authored by "Gries" or by "Teitelbaum" and "Field".

Note: The user should not use short, common words or single letters in the bibliographic keyword fields (e.g., "a", "for", "in", "of", "s", "the", etc.). Words with high frequency, such as "use", "well", etc, are considered to be common words as well, and are automatically discarded. The user will be asked to re-enter his/her search if the keyword he/she enters matches too many words in the database.

4.3 Retrieved documents

The results of a search are first displayed in summary - the number of documents found is displayed for each publishing authority. The documents found are listed publisher by publisher and the title, the author(s) and

the document identifier of each document are displayed. The picture below shows the results of a search (Figure 4-2).

1	Netscope: Scorch Results	- 15 F
Sale forweit State	🔬 🥖 🤮 🖳 🤹 👫 🥵 💾	materner) 💕 viset's beared
E Kenuth 1		-
Search Result	5	1
Search fields:		
entimation + sil er (sens + fault arter	are or not put introve or keyword put introver)	
Search Summary		
Arthurtes you select	ed as bated below by number of other found.	
• (0) <u>bris</u> b • (0) <u>C10</u> b	nter Hannel de Berlende en Adomatique et en Antonatique Mais de Belendets delle Adomatique Aludi	
SOTE Clack ship	a moonges for organizations where the search did not complete?	
Search Results:		
Inria, Institut National de J	Rechenche en Informatique el en Antonatique	
Tulle Aathor(a) Durament M	Science of the Academic Academic Science & Science & Science & Texas Reverse Realized Science Machine Market Market Physics and Langest Texas Rev. 2015	
Tata Asthoreto Docement ist	Cond. This and Boltonic Architectures . They Berlines and Videoz Issamy 507-1550	
Table Authoritis Document lat	Churches Marca Anne Marce Kernanice and RE-1673	

Figure 4-2 Search results.

By clicking on a given document the user can view its bibliographic description: the title, the author(s), the document identifier (Bib-Code), the date, the subject fields (free keywords, ACM, MSC), the type, the language, the abstract and the local language abstract if exist (see Figure 4-3). If the author, during the document submission, has inserted the document file in one of the accepted format, the user can view it.

5	Netscape: Self-Validating Plaganois of Appenable Systems =	12
2 P	3 2 × 3 1 + 4 1	aN.
Lougie Alto	//iterations.ntmiterat/or/2019ac/environmenter/101134-12.18 mecentres of separation of 1	() was a finite
Self-Vali	dating Diagnosis of Hypercube Systems	
Annoros	Perts Maretter and Paris Loris	1
Rtb Code:	\$998.834.12.54	
Date	1099 CS 27	
Keyvunits.	Dywnio-bwlt Llaganta, Feldy Tultaniae, Webi orail: Distant	
ACHI	IT IS CONTRACT, AND PART THREE CAPERFORMATICS OF ATTEME	
Property Property	Texture faire	
Longmage	Emileb	
Turnin channel		
turnerbenn sint ber turnerbene für approxi- sinte zury be en beg	indicated deterministratively in advectingly perform a very multi vision of each. These performances that the Print Age from requiring a large degree at magnitudity with a the same of wates usual acting of which class, where he printed gr = 2006.	rflan ir 9 cf faith
How to viev	v this document	-
. Dayley at	arranders of the document in one of the following framets	
0.02	many of Install page	-
· Depleyed	whether proge to not of the inclusing formate processed base in project	
Inter We	anda (c) (miloši hela	
· Daster Se	a whole domained to use of the following formula	
	arthropy DOC TIC Bythe	
· Printing the	Contract of an error we instant	

Figure 4-3 Display of a selected document.

Depending on the file format, the user can choose to display an overview of the document (the whole document in thumbnail format, or page by page, see Figure 4-4) or display the entire document using the suitable viewer. He/she can also download and/or print out the whole document or a range of pages.

		Nets	cope: Overview par	t 1	j
🔹 🎽	3 A	Sarah Balanga .	li 🛤 📽	11	
matter & any	Celerence al plane at A	1/1 mar /972 2/Corput	14/14130-041/1979-8+	42-34/1 November and Stee	eren ander ander 🕼 🖓 where's dass
ere oncluio I Meat	sectors I Classecy I	EmitOrested 1			
elf-Valid	lating Dia	gnosis of Hy	percube Sys	stems	
no Maestrino and 1 19-03-22 chos T of 1	Penter Skoth				
acta page					
100	1.02		10 diga	1000	
Concession of				1.00	
			Co. Const		
15	3	181	A) UL	745	
		allowed and	Second Second		
	1				

Figure 4-4 Display of document thumbnails.

4.4 BROWSE service

The browse function is used to acquire an idea of the content of the collections of the separate ERCIM and NCSTRL Institutions. This function in ETRDL has been extended with respect to NCSTRL where the user can browse the collections only by year or by author (see Figure 4-5). On the other side, the user can browse the ERCIM collections also by subject classification (see Figure 4-6).



Figure 4-5 Browse the NCSTRL collection.



Figure 4-6 Browse the ERCIM collection.

A document is selected and viewed by clicking on it with the mouse. Selected documents are displayed as explained in the Retrieved documents section and can be downloaded and then printed.

4.4.1 Browse by Authors

The user can choose to browse all authors or browse a range (e.g. from M to O) or browse a single letter. After the user has made his/her choice the system shows him/her an ordered list of authors. For each author the list of his/her document is shown. For each document, the title, document identifier, and date are shown. The user can click on the title to see the document.

4.4.2 Browse by Years

The user can choose to browse all years or browse a range or browse an single year. After the user has made his/her choice the system shows him/her an ordered list of years. For each year a list of documents is shown. For each document, the title, document identifier, authors and date are shown. The user can click on the title to see the document.

4.4.3 Browse by Keywords

The user can choose to browse all keywords or browse a range (e.g. from M to O) or browse a single letter. After the user has made his/her choice the system shows him/her an ordered list of keywords. For each keyword, a list of documents is shown (title, document identifier and date). The user can click on the title to see the document.

4.4.4 Browse by ACM codes and descriptors

The user can choose to browse all ACM codes or browse a range (e.g. from M to O) or browse a single letter. After the user has made his/her choice the system shows him/her an ordered list of ACM codes. For each codes, a list of documents is shown (title, document identifier and date). The user can click on the title to see the document.

4.4.5 Browse by MSC codes and descriptors

The user can choose to browse all MSC codes or browse a range (e.g. from M to O) or browse a single letter. After the user has made his/her choice the system shows him/her an ordered list of MSC codes. For each code, a list of documents is shown (title, document identifier and date). The user can click on the title to see the document.

5 References

[ACM98] ACM (Association for Computing Machinery) Computing Classification System (CCS), Version 1998 (http://www.acm.org/class/1998)

[DublinCore] Dublin Core Metadata Element Set: Resource Page (http://purl.org/metadata/dublincore)

[ETRDL] S. Biagioni, J. Borbinha, R. Ferber, P. Hansen, S. Kapidakis, L. Kovacs, F. Roos, A.M. Vercoustre, (1998). "The ERCIM Technical Reference Digital Library". In ECDL'98 Proceedings, Crete, Greece, September 1998, pp.905-906 (http://www.iei.pi.cnr.it/DELOS/EDL/ETRDL98.html)

[ETRDLdemo] ETRDL Demo Decription: Handout distributed ERCIM 10th anniversary, Amsterdam, 4-5 November,1999 (http://www.iei.pi.cnr.it/DELOS/EDL/handout99/handout99.html)

[MSC91] AMS (American Mathematical Society) Mathematics Subject Classification (MSC), Version 1991 (<u>http://www.ams.org/msc/home.html</u>)



ETRDL Administration Service User Guide

Maria Bruna Baldacci Stefania Biagioni Carlo Carlesi

ISTI - CNR

ETRDL is a digital library management system that provides access to a distributed collection of digital documents, consisting of a set of the local collections. These are published by the institutions participating in the digital library and are maintained on local servers.

ETRDL functionality regards searching and browsing ERCIM collections to retrieval existing documents, submitting new documents in a specific collection and administer the ERCIM collections via a Web user interface. The aim of this document is to present an user guide for the information seekers that want to browse the ETRDL collections and search documents in one or more selected collections..3

D-Lib – The Digital Library Competence Center is funded by the IST Programme of the European Union (project no. IST-2001-32587). Scientific coordinator: ISTI-CNR (Pisa, Italy).



Table of Contents

Table of Contents	
1 INTRODUCTION	
2 USEFUL INFORMATION	
2.1 TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS	
2.2 ETRDL ON-LINE HELP	
3 MANAGING ETRDL COLLECTIONS	
3.1 ERCIM-ETRDL METADATA	
3.2 LIBRARY DIRECTORY STRUCTURE	
3.3 REPOSITORY DIRECTORY STRUCTURE	
4 HOW TO ADMINISTER ETRDL VIA THE WEB-BASED USER INTERFACE	32
4.1 INSERT A DOCUMENT	
4.2 REMOVE A DOCUMENT	
5 HOW TO ADMINISTER ETRDL VIA THE SHELL COMMANDS	
6 ADMINISTRATION: SPECIAL SERVICES AT THE ISTI LOCAL SERVER	37
6.1 APPROVAL OF THE DOCUMENT	
6.2 EDITING OF THE DOCUMENT	41
7 REFERENCES	42

Table of pictures

FIGURE 1 - ETRDL ADMINISTER HELP ON LINE DOCUMENTATION	6
FIGURE 2 - ADMINISTRATORS AND REPOSITORIES	8
FIGURE 3 - LIBRARY DIRECTORY STRUCTURE	1
FIGURE 4 - THE CNR-ISTI REPOSITORY DIRECTORY STRUCTURE	1
FIGURE 5 - ETRDL ADMINISTRATION PAGE	2
FIGURE 6 - ETRDL ADMINISTRATION PAGE: DOCUMENT CHOICE	3
FIGURE 7 - THE BIBLIOGRAPHIC DESCRIPTION OF AN INCOMING DOCUMENT	3
FIGURE 8 - THE BIBLIOGRAPHIC CODE ASSIGNMENT	3
FIGURE 9 - ETRDL REJECT PAGE	5
FIGURE 10 - ETRDL REMOVE PAGE	6
FIGURE 11 - CNR-ISTI LOCAL ADMINISTRATION PAGE	38
FIGURE 12 - APPROVAL: PASSWORD	8
FIGURE 13 - APPROVAL: BIBLIOGRAPHIC RECORD (1)	9
FIGURE 14 - APPROVAL: BIBLIOGRAPHIC RECORD (2)	0
FIGURE 15 - REJECTING A DOCUMENT	1

Table of tables

TABLE 1 -	- CNR SERVERS	.27
TABLE 2 -	- ADMINISTRATION PAGE ADDRESSES AND REPOSITORY NAME	28
TABLE 3 -	- BIBLIOGRAPHIC FIELDS USED BY ETRDL	29

1 Introduction

ETRDL is a digital library management system that provides access to a distributed collection of digital documents, consisting of a set of the local collections. These are published by the institutions participating in the digital library and are maintained on local servers.

This guide gives information on the ETRDL ADMINISTRATION Service.

In the examples made to illustrate the service, reference is made to the ETRDL system as instantiated for the ERCIM-ETRDL digital library, that provides access to a distributed collection of grey literature (technical reports, theses, workshop proceedings, pre-prints, etc.) in the areas of Computer Sciences and Applied Mathematics produced by members of the ERCIM Consortium.

The ERCIM-ETRDL digital library currently provides access to collections of the following ERCIM Institutions:

• CNR (Consiglio Nazionale delle Ricerche - Italy),

- **CWI** (Centruum voor Wiskunde en Informatica The Netherlands),
- FORTH (Foundation of Research and Technology Hellas Greece),
- GMD (German National Research Center for Information Technology -Germany),
- INRIA (Institut National de Recherche en Informatique et en Automatique -France),

• SICS (Swedish Institute of Computer Science - Sweden),

• SZTAKI (Magyar Tudományos Akadémia - Számítástechnikai és Automatizálási Kutató Intézete - Hungary),

• University of Masarick (Czeck Republic).

The aim of this guide is to provide a manual reference for the ETRDL information administrators who manage documents and collections by checking the correctness of incoming document, inserting new documents in the ETRDL repositories, rejecting incorrect documents, and withdrawing documents, if requested. We suggest to the administrators to read in advance the ETRDL Search/Browse User Guide, for general information, and the Submit User Guide to know which formal requirements any document to be inserted must respond to.

ETRDL administrators can administer one or more collections. The administration procedure can be performed via the Web user interface but it can also be performed by shell commands. Even if the Webbased procedure is moreuser-friendly than the other, both procedures will be presented in this guide. The administrator of a ETRDL collection is assumed to be experienced with Web browsing. The administrator who wants to perform the shell command procedure must be experienced with the Unix operating system. This document is organised in the following sections:

- Useful information: technical requirements to administer the ETRDL collections.
- How the incoming directory and the repository are organised.
- How to access to ETRDL: collections description and user interface characteristics.

• ETRDL metadata: syntax and semantics of bibliographic records; the bibliographic code or document identifier.

• The administration procedure via web user interface.

• The administration procedure via shell commands.

2 Useful information

In this section the user can find useful information about technical requirements necessary to administer the ETRDL collections. Moreover a brief introduction to the on-line help is given.

2.1 Technical Requirements

The user can access ETRDL via Web, this means that he/she can use which kind of computer and operating system he/she prefers. In order to administer ETRDL collections the user must have:

- Internet access availability
- some knowledge of Web browsing

• a Web browser such as Netscape Navigator or MS Internet Explorer having JavaScript capabilities (we suggest to use Netscape Navigator).

- some knowledge of Unix shell commands
- some knowledge of document editing under Unix operating system.

ETRDL documents have different file format: PostScript, PDF, text, HTML, TIFF. To check the correctness of document inserted by the authors, the administrator needs the following tools to display documents:

- PS viewer for PostScript documents,
- Adobe Acrobat Reader for PDF documents,
- TIFF viewer for TIFF images.

2.2 ETRDL on-line help

ETRDL on line help is available at http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it/README. This documentation is directed to four different kind of users: the system administrators, the digital library administrators, the information seekers and the information providers. System administrators are involved in the installation and configuration of the system and digital library administrators are involved in the management of the ETRDL documents. An access to ETRDL from this site is also provided. In Figure 1 the ETRDL Administer help on line section is shown. The user can access this section by clicking on the "Administer" hyperlink on the left menu.



Figure 1 - ETRDL administer help on line documentation.

3 Managing ETRDL Collections

As introduced in section 1, examples in this guide make reference is to the ETRDL system as instantiated for the ERCIM-ETRDL digital library; this library provides access to distributed collections of grey literature (technical reports, theses, workshop proceedings, pre-prints, etc.) in the areas of Computer Sciences and Applied Mathematics produced by members of the ERCIM Consortium. The ERCIM-ETRDL digital library consists of three main collections (NCSTRL, ERCIM, Local – however, note that NCSTRL collection is presently not accessible) and for each collection some services are provided. The search and browse services are available on all the above collections even if some differences exist depending on the specialisation of services. The submit and withdraw services are available only on local collections.

A local collection consists of all kinds of grey literature produced by a single ERCIM Institution. Each ERCIM institution has created its own collection by setting up a repository of bibliographic description and digital documents.

From the perspective of the architecture, ETRDL realizes a federation of digital libraries, this means that a ETRDL digital library is composed of many instances of the same system (ETRDL). Each ERCIM institution has installed an instance of the ETRDL system. Each instance provides the search, browse, submit and withdraw services over the local repository(ies) and interacts with other ETRDL instances by providing the search and browse services. Each repository is managed by an administrator who inserts, removes and updates the digital documents and their bibliographic descriptions.

Institutions	Server URL	Server Physical location
Istituto di Cibernetica (Na)	http://dienst.cib.na.cnr.it	CNR-IC
Istituto CNUCE (Pi)		
Istituto di Elaborazione della Informazione (Pi)		
Istituto di Linguistica Computazionale (Pi)		
Istituto di Matematica Computazionale (Pi)	http://dienst.jej.pj.enr.jt	CNR-IEI
Istituto di Ricerca sulle Onde Elettromagnetiche (Fi)	http://delistici.pi.cli/at	CINCILI
Istituto di Studi sulla Ricerca e sulla Documentazione Scientifica (Roma)		
Istituto per le Applicazioni Telematiche (Pi)		
Istituto di Elaborazione dei Segnali e delle Immagini (Ba)	http://dienst.iesi.ba.cnr.it	CNR- IESI
Area della Ricerca (Pa)		
Istituto di Fisica Cosmica con Applicazioni all'Informatica (Pa)	http://dienst.ifcai.pa.cnr.it:8080	CNR- IFCAI
Istituto di Tecnologie Didattiche e Formative (Pa)		
Istituto di Analisi Numerica (Pv)		
Istituto per la Matematica Applicata (Ge)	http://exlibris.jan.py.cnr.jt	CNR-
Istituto per le Applicazioni della Matematica e dell'Informatica (Mi)		IAN

Table 1 - CNR servers.

A local collection can also be composed of sub-collections. At present only the CNR collection is composed of sub-collections. Each sub-collection corresponds to a repository of a single CNR Institutions. In Table 1 the fifteen CNR institutions owning a repository are shown.

A ETRDL instance can manage one or more repositories. For each instance one or more administrators can be declared by defining suitable access rights over the repository. Moreover, an administrator can manage one or more repositories. In Figure 2 some possible cases are shown: an administrator that manages one repository stored on a server (Server 3), an administrator managing two repositories on the same server and an administrator that manage two repository, the first stored on Server 1 and the second stored on Server 2. The access to the repositories is filtered by an access control list (ACL).



Figure 2 - Administrators and repositories.

The fifteen CNR repositories are distributed over five instances as shown in Table 2.

Institutions	Repository name	Administration page
Istituto di Cibernetica (Na)	ercim.cnr.ic	http://dienst.cib.na.cnr.it/AUIscripts/admin/admin_page.pl
Istituto CNUCE (Pi)	ercim.cnr.cnuce	
Istituto di Elaborazione della Informazione (Pi)	ercim.cnr.iei	
Istituto di Linguistica Computazionale (Pi)	ercim.cnr.ilc	
Istituto di Matematica Computazionale (Pi)	ercim.cnr.imc	
Istituto di Ricerca sulle Onde Elettromagnetiche (Fi)	ercim.cnr.iroe	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it/AUIscripts/admin/admin_page.pl
Istituto di Studi sulla Ricerca e sulla Documentazione Scientifica (Roma)	ercim.cnr.isrds	
Istituto per le Applicazioni Telematiche (Pi)	ercim.cnr.iat	
Istituto di Elaborazione dei Segnali e delle Immagini (Ba)	ercim.cnr.iesi	http://dienst.iesi.ba.cnr.it/AUIscripts/admin/admin_page.pl
Area della Ricerca (Pa)	ercim.cnr.areapa	
Istituto di Fisica Cosmica con Applicazioni all'Informatica (Pa)	ercim.cnr.ifcai	http://dienst.ifcai.pa.cnr.it:8080/AUIscripts/admin/admin_page.pl
Istituto di Tecnologie Didattiche e Formative (Pa)	ercim.cnr.itdf	
Istituto di Analisi Numerica (Pv)	ercim.cnr.ian	
Istituto per la Matematica Applicata (Ge)	ercim.cnr.ima	http://exlibris.ian.pv.cnr.it/AUIscripts/admin/admin_page.pl
Istituto per le Applicazioni della Matematica e dell'Informatica (Mi)	ercim.cnr.iami	

 Table 2 - Administration page addresses and repository names.

3.1 ERCIM-ETRDL Metadata

The most important task of the information administrator is checking the correctness of the incoming bibliographic records.

In the ERCIM and Local collections each document has associated a common metadata description (bibliographic record). This description is based on the Dublin Core meta description standard [Dublin Core].

ERCIM requirements have influenced the choice of how to represent the subject of documents. To this purpose, the user can employ the ACM Computing Classification [MSC(] and/or the AMS Mathematics Subject Classification [MSC91], and/or free keywords to represent the subject of documents both during the submission procedure and for retrieval when querying the system. The ACM and AMS schemes are accessible on-line and can be browsed during both retrieval and submission; codes with associated descriptors can be selected and inserted in the appropriate fields.

The user can employ the *locabstract* field to add the abstract in other language than English during the submission procedure. In such case the user specifies the language by fill in the *loclanguage* field. As ERCIM is a multilingual community, this field helps user to retrieve documents querying the system using his/her own language.

For checking the correctness of the bibliographic records, the information administrator Table 3 shows the bibliographic fields used in the ERCIM-ETRDL digital library. The first column contains the field label, the second one explains the contents of the corresponding field and gives the syntax for it. Examples of correct contents are given for each field.

Bibliographic label	Description of bibliographic field and its permitted value
BIB-VERSION .:	This field must be set to CS-TR-v2.1E value
ID::	This field contains the document identifier specified with the following syntax: CollectionName//Docld Example: ID:: ercim.cnr.iei//1999-B4-27-11
PAGES::	This field contains the number of pages of a PS document, for other file formats the value must be set to 1. If no documents have been inserted, the value must be 0.
ABSTRACT::	This field contains the abstract of the document. All documents, whatever their language, must have an abstract in English.
ACM::	This field is a subject field and contains a ACM code with its descriptor and must be repeated for each ACM code/descriptor assigned to the document: add an ACM:: field for any ACM code/descriptor. If the document has no ACM codes/descriptors the ACM: field must not appear in
	the bibliographic record. The ": " symbol must be inserted between a coded descriptor and an uncoded one.
	Example:
	ACM:: D-1-5 Object-oriented Programming
	Example:
	ACM:: D-1-3 Concurrent Programming: Distributed programming
AUTHOR::	This field contains the name of an author of the document.
	For each author use the following syntax: Last-Name, First-Name
	Example:
	AUTHOR: Rossi, Francesco
	AUTHOR: Di Paternò, Maria Grazia
	If there is more than one author, use the following syntax:
	Lastname1, First-Name1 and Firstname2, Lastname2 and Firstname3, Lastname3 and
	Example:
	Rossi, Mario and Bianchi, Paolo, and Verdi, Carlo
DATE::	This field contains the publication date. The format is Year (four digits) Month (two digits) Day (two digits) as defined in ISO 8601 (Date and time format). Example: DATE:: 1998-11-16
EMAIL::	This field contains the e-mail address of the person to be contacted with respect to
	the document.
	Example:
	EMAIL:: carlo@iei.pi.cnr.it
ENTRY::	This field contains the date of submission to the system. The format depends on operating system settings.

Bibliographic label	Description of bibliographic field and its permitted value
KEYWORD::	This field is a subject field and contains uncontrolled terms, e.g. relatively new concepts, proper names of systems, etc., chosen freely by the author or the compiler of the bibliographic record (normally in English). This field may be repeated. Example: KEYWORD:: Distributed digital library
LANGUAGE::	This field contains the language in which the document is written. Accepted values are the following: Dutch, English, French, German, Greek, Hungarian, Italian, Portuguese, Spanish, Swedish. The correct form of the values is checked by the SUBMIT service. The default value is English. Example: LANGUAGE:: Italian
LOCABSTRACT::	This field contains, if appropriate, an abstract for the document in the source language.
LOCLANGUAGE::	This field indicates the language in which the local abstract is written. Accepted values are the following: Dutch, English, French, German, Greek, Hungarian, Italian, Portuguese, Spanish, Swedish. The correct form of the values is checked by the SUBMIT service. LOCLANGUAGE:: Spanish
MSC::	This field is a subject field and contains a MSC code with its descriptor and must be repeated for each MSC code/descriptor assigned to the document: add an MSC:: field for each MSC code/descriptor. Example: MSC:: 11K50 Metric theory of continued fractions
REVISION::	This field contains the date and the comment of the revision. This field is automatically added to an existent bibliographic record when the withdraw operation is performed. Example: REVISION:: November 5, 1999; Withdrawn
TEL::	This field contains the telephone number of the person to be contacted with respect to the document.
TITLE::	This field contains the title of the work as assigned by the author and should include the complete title with all the subtitles, if any. Example: TITLE:: Real-Time Multiprocessor Systems: Performability Evaluation
TYPE::	This field contains the type of publication as assigned by the issuing organisation. Accepted values are the following: Technical-Report, Thesis , EC-deliverable, Proceeding, ERCIM-News, Preprint Project-Report Example: TYPE:: Proceeding
WITHDRAW:	This fields contains the reason of the document withdrawal. This field is automatically added to an existent bibliographic record when the withdraw operation is performed. Example: WITHDRAW: Pubblicato su ACM Transactions on Mathematical Software, 23 (1997) 16-31
END::	This field indicate the end of bibliographic record and must contain the same values as the field ID::.

Table 3 - Bibliographic fields used by ETRDL.

3.2 Library directory structure

The procedure to add a new document to a collection consists of two main steps: first the author submits the digital document with its bibliographic description to the system, then the administrator checks for correctness the inserted data and inserts the document and the bibliographic description in the collection.

Therefore the data inserted by the author are not stored directly in the repository but they are stored in a temporary storage called "incoming" directory. The directories structure is shown in Figure 3. When the author performs the submit procedure a bibliographic file is created and stored in the "incoming/bib" directory together with an HTML file that is used in the administration procedure. If the author submits also the digital document, this file is uploaded and stored in another directory under the "incoming" one according with the type of the document. For example if the author submits a PS file, this will be stored in "incoming/ps" directory. If the author inserts some Tiff files or some HTML files representing a single document, the system creates a directory under "incoming/tiff" or "incoming/html", respectively, where these files will be stored. The first HTML file inserted by the author is considered to be the main file and the system renames it as "index.html".

The system associates a temporary name to the incoming files or directories. This name is composed of the collection name, the date of the submission and a progressive number.

A bib file name example is ercim.cnr.imc:Oct28-2.bib; a PostScript file name example is ercim.cnr.iei:Nov09-4.ps; a directory name example is ercim.cnr.cnuce:Sep17-1.



The "withdrawn" directory stores the compressed document file of withdrawn documents.

3.3 Repository directory structure

When the administrator inserts the document into a collection, the files move from the incoming directory to the repository one. Normally the root of the repository is called "Data Bases" and contains one or more subdirectories each of which stores the documents of a single institution. An example of the repository structure is shown in Figure 4.



Figure 4 - The CNR-IEI repository directory structure.

4 How to administer ETRDL via the web-based user interface

The administrator can access the ETRDL Administrator User Interface via web at the locations shown in Table 2. The administrator user interface has an English version only. Figure 5 shows the ETRDL Administration Page for the collections administered at CNR-IEI.

When the user accesses the ETRDL Administration Page he/she must fill in a form that allows him/her to browse an incoming document directory and choose which of the following actions he/she wants to perform: 1. insert a document in a collection or remove a document from a collection

(withdraw or delete)

2. select the collection to browse

3. insert the String of Identification (SID)

The SID is contained in "...../dienst/AUI/scripts/admin/.users" file.

ETRUL Administration Page - Netscape		- # ×
Fis Edi View Izo Commencator Help Back Forcer Reload Hore Search Netroe	pa Print Socurty Stop	N
Book marks 🛷 Location (http://densite.picn.it/Autor	ipts/admin/admin_bage.pt	· Qu wrathead
E	TRDL Administration Page	
To browse an incoming document directory: 1. Choose the action to do: • Insert a document in a collecti • Remove a document from a collect 1. Select the collection to browse 1. Insert your String of Identification	on or tick (Withdraw or delete) ((SID)	
Action	>>>>> Click and choose an Action <<<<< 🖃	
Collection	a:	
>>> Click and d	choose a Collection <<<	-
Password:		
1 <u></u>	Enter this Collection Reset this Form	
Bocument: Done		<u>.</u>

Figure 5 - ETRDL Administration Page.

4.1 Insert a document

In order to insert a document in the collection the administrator has to:

1. choose it from the list of documents that have been submitted

2. click on "View BIB Record" button.

Figure 6 shows the list of incoming documents for the ercim.cnr.imc collection.

When the administrator clicks on the "View BIB Record" button the system shows him/her the bibliographic record for the document he/she has selected. The user can select one of the following actions:

1. insert the document into a collection (first assigning it a document identifier -DocId)

2. view the document

3. reject the document.

ETRDL Administration Page - Netscape	
ne zur view izo communicator nep Sack Forton, Reload Home Search Netscape Pini Security For	N
👖 🍂 Bookmarks 🏒 Location: http://dienst.iei.pi.on: II: BD/AUIscripts/admin/gateway.pi	💌 📢 What's Related
ETRDL Administration Page	
1. TREE Freeman and Trage	
The ercim.cor.imc 's incoming document directory contains the follow	ing:
Document LD:	
ercim.cnr.imc.Oct28-4	
ercim.cnr:imc:Uct28-6 ercim.cnr:imc:Uct29-3	
ereim.cnr.imc.Oct29-5 ereim.cnr.imc.Oct29-6	
ercim.cnr.inc. Oct29-9	
View BIB Record Reset this Form	
Con Name	
GODACK	
- AMA	
·	<u>.</u>
📓 🗝 Deculment, Done	🍇 🔩 🕼 🖼 🏑 🕢

Figure 6 - ETRDL Administration Page: document choice.

Figure 7 and Figure 8 show respectively an example of bibliographic record and the three possible actions. When the user clicks on the "Insert into Collection" button, the insert procedure starts.

If the file associated with the bibliographic record is a postscript file, the system generates the inline gif images of each page of the document and the thumbnails.

When this procedure terminates, a link permitting return to the administration page appears.

# COMPANIES STREET, St		E 1101 Antonio Page Amount	
De De des la Consume lan		Br 10 the Sr Creation unt	
4 5 3 13		4 * 3 & * 3 4 4 4	k = 40
Contractor Distances		Contract Discontinuation of the second	
		Free Annual Contractor Contractor	
		sector and an and an	net and a second s
		And least the second	
	ETRDL Administration Page	Nukjem (# MENC	
		Bagelin Aberlant	
THE RANGEMENT DEVICE STO	And operation of the local limit with the the test of the	In this paper we describe the Discourse Wander Etrantices of some of the best compression available today. Although	(RWE) a samplestly new approach to data or it is easy to interference productional why the RW
Ditte	The Jumma Photos Trangune: Theory and Product	analysis of DWT-based algorithms requires a corolid study	of every single algorithmic component. We do
Anthresis	Mercini, Diseant	the dar EWT and we show that they compression rate on	a be burgente d mit ferter auf the Auffa certer reigner
Authority	115A.00.00	alty distant second of the algorithmic issues which when is t	he comparison of the DWT, and we designed
Andber's name	mannagen ege en i	which protoce interacting Acculopments.	And some state of the second
Andhor's fel.			
Rivery	Catabox 20, (1989)		
Itale	2500.44.50		
Type	Enocembra	from min California	And Codes June . (14-12-24
Language	18 x 5 m	the by Record	8
Pages.	0	Rogert the Constant	A
Sad justice Reporteds	Date inspection as properties and sys-		
Subjection ACM		SEAL INVESTIG	I
Talk Joint you Subset			
and the second s		2	
Beglans die trans		the second se	

Figure 7 - The bibliographic description of an incoming document.



*Important not*e. If the procedure generating the inline gif images and thumbnails fails the administrator must complete the insert procedure following the Command Line instructions (see paragraph "How to administer ETRDL via the shell commands").

The procedure fails may be caused by a malformed postscript file, by a postscript file that uses unsupported characters or by a not recoverable system error. In all these cases, the administrator must solve the problem and then complete the insert procedure by shell commands.

When the administrator clicks the "View the Document" button, the system shows a HTML page which contains two hyperlinks to the bibliographic record (in text and html format) and one or more hyperlinks to the body of the document depending on its type. The administrator has to check the bibliographic record correctness before assigning the bibliographic code and inserting the document. If the administrator finds that the bibliographic record is not correct, he/she has two choices:

• correct the errors in the bibliographic record (modifying the file ".bib",

corresponding to the selected document, in "...../library/incoming/bib") and then

assign the bibliographic code and insert the document. For example, if the

administrator is inserting the document named "ercim.cnr.imc:Oct28-2", then he/she has to edit the following file

"...../library/incoming/bib/ercim.cnr.imc:Oct28-2.bib";

• reject the document.

When the user clicks the "Reject the Document" button, the system shows a form where the reason of the document rejection must be registered (see Figure 9). Two alternative actions can be performed:

1. send an e-mail to the author with the reason of document rejection, while maintaining the submitted document. This action is performed by clicking on the "Send & Keep" button;

2. send an e-mail to the author with the reason of the document rejection, while deleting the bibliographic record and the document from the incoming directory.

This action is performed by clicking on the "Send & Delete" button.

💥 ETRDL Administratio	n Page - Netscape		١×
Eile Edit View Go Co	ommunicator Help		
Bookmarks 🤌	Location: http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it:80/AUIscripts/admin/gateway.pl	▼ (What's Related	N
	ETRDL Administration Page		
Document Rej	ect: ercim.cnr.imc:Oct28-5		-
Title:	Analysis of Average and Worst case error in Hierarchical Radiosity		
Entry Date:	October 28, 1999		
Reason:	4	× •	
E-mail:	petlegrini@imc.pi.cnr.it		
Choose an action:	Send & Keep Send & Delete Re:	setthis Form	
Go or	back Choose another document Document: Dore	ration Page	-

Figure 9 - ETRDL Reject Page

4.2 Remove a document

The administrator has to remove a document from the repository if requested by the author of that document. The reasons why an author asks for document removal are for example that it has been published in a journal.

Authors send a withdraw request to the administrator via a web-based procedure that is accessible from the local homepage. The withdrawal of a document is permitted only to that user who has submitted it. The withdrawal request is essentially a mail to the administrator. This mail contains the document identifier, the reason why the withdrawal is asked for, the author e-mail address. The administrator uses these information to fill in the withdraw form at the administration page shown in Figure 10.

In order to remove a document, the administrator has to:

1. specify the identifier of the document, and

2. click on the "WithDraw Document" button and specify the withdrawal reason, if he/she wants only to make the document file unavailable to ETRDL users. The.18 administrator can also specify the new document location if the author has sent this information.

3. click on "Delete Document", instead, if he/she wants to delete the document from the database. The "Delete Document" command removes both the document and its bibliographic record from the repository. This is an unrecoverable procedure.

The delete procedure must be used only if the same document has been inserted two times with different bibliographic code. In other cases, the administrator must use the "WithDraw Document" button.

<u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>G</u> o <u>C</u> on	municator <u>H</u> elp	
🐠 Bookmarks 🤞	Location: http://dienstiei.pi.cnr.it:80/AUIscripts/admin/galeway.pl	🗾 🍘 What's Related
	ETRDL Administration Pag	<u>je</u>
order to withdraw	za document:	
1. specify the docid	l of the document, and	
 if you want only and click on Wit. Attention, you 	<i>withdraw</i> it, i.e. make unavailable the document file, you have <i>Draw Document</i> button. can also specify the new document location	to specify the withdrawal reason
 instead, if you w Attention, delet 	ant <mark>delete</mark> the document from the database you have to only cli e means destroy the document, so this's an unrecoverable proc	ick on <i>Delete Document</i> button. :edure.
Document Identifier:	View BIB Record	
Reasons:		×.
New access point:	Choose protocol 💌	max 120
Choose an action:	WithDraw Document Delete Document	Reset this Form

Figure 10 - ETRDL Remove Page.

5 How to administer ETRDL via the shell commands

In order to insert a new document in the digital library the administrator must perform the following steps: 1. Edit the file "..../library/incoming/bib/<IncomingDocumentName>.bib" where <IncomingDocumentName> is the name that the submit procedure assigns to the bibliographic record of a new submitted document.

• substitute at line 2 the string after the double "/" with the document identifier (<DocId>) he/she intends to give to the document

• repeat the above operation on the last line.

2. Delete the file "...../library/incoming/bib/<IncomingDocumentName>.html". This file is used by the administration procedure via Web browser.

- 3. Run the command
- "...../dienst/LibMgt/install_tr parameter1 parameter2" where

parameter1=<CollectionName>:<DocId> and

parameter2=<CollectionName>:<IncomingDocumentName>.

For example:

"...../dienst/LibMgt/install_tr ercim.cnr.imc:1999-b4-10 ercim.cnr.imc: Oct28-2".

The command install_tr produces a new directory called <DocId> under the directory "..../DataBases/<CollectionName>". This command moves the bibliographic record into the directory it has just created.

4. Run the command "...../dienst/Indexer/build-inverted-indexes.pl -b -n -s". This command rebuilds the index files.

5. Run the command "...../dienst/Utilities/bin/reload-data". This command make available on line the inserted document.

6. Move and Rename the document. This step is different for different document file types. The instructions for the different document file types are shown below :

PS File:

- Rename the file
- "..../library/incoming/ps/<IncomingDocumentName>.ps"

as

- "...../library/incoming/ps/<DocId>.ps"
- Move this file to

"...../DataBases/<CollectionName>/<DocId>/"

• Generate the Inline Gif and Thumbnails:

♦ Run the command

"...../dienst/LibMgt/db_build -docid

«CollectionName»: «DocId» -format inline".

• This command creates Inline Gif and it is optional but becomes mandatory if the administrator wants to create Thumbnails.

• Run the command

"..../dienst/LibMgt/db_build -docid <CollectionName>:<DocId>

-format composite".

This command creates a Thumbnail Image and it is optional.

- Run the command
- "...../dienst/LibMgt/db_build -docid

<CollectionName>:<DocId> -format composite_imagemap".

This command creates a Thumbnail Image Map and it is mandatory if the administrator has performed the previous step.

PDF file:

The administrator has to make no actions.

TXT file:

The administrator has to make no actions.

HTML

file: The administrator has to make no actions.

TIFF file:

Delete the directory

"..../library/incoming/tiff/<CollectionName>: <IncomingDocumentName>"

6 Administration: Special Services at the IEI local Server

The CNR-IEI local server is provided with the following functionality :

1. approval of the document

2. editing of the bibliographic record

3. self generation of the bibliographic code

The administration page is shown in Figure 11.

hess 💽 Nthoi/Idensities.pl.cn/J	t/annihistra.html	×	2 ⁹ St	Lin8
	CNR Italian National Council of Research		R	
ERCIM T	echnical Reference Digit	al Libra	rv	
the course of	official and official of the			
	Approval		-	
	Approval Administration			
arrest this and the rest h	Approval Administration	accedyt Language		itty.
arrest this and the rest h	Approval Administration This is disaver Usesson 4.1.3 This pages you have to use a set histores with the fac	raccelpt Language	,	iny.

Figure 11 - CNR-IEI Local Administration page.

6.1 Approval of the document

The "Approval" link goes to the revision interface. A password is requested.

	ETRDL Approval Page	
Insert your String	of Identification (SID)	
	Password:	

Figure 12 - Approval: password

When the reviewer insert the password the system shows the list of documents to be reviewed (see Figure 6). After selecting one of the documents, the reviewer can see the selected document by clicking on the "View BIB Record" button. The system shows the bibliographic record, the abstract and the approval status in the approval field (see Figures 13 and 14). The values of the approval field may be as follows:

- "Passed: no" : the document has not been reviewed,
- "Passed: yes" : the document has been reviewed and approved.
- The system offers the following options:
- 1. view the document
- 2. approve the document

3. reject the document

tiffees 🛃 http:///	ienet iei p. chr. f (Allisoppis)admin (garewey, pi	Шн
	ETRDL Administration Page	
he bibliogr	aphis record for the document ercim.ons.leitFeh8-1 is the following:	
litte	Degradation identification and model parameter estimation in discontinuity- adaptive visual reconstruction	
Author(s)	Tonazzini, A. Bedini, L.	Ĩ
Authority	ercim.onr.iei	
Author's e- mail	tonazzini@tei.pi.cnr.it	
Author's tel.	+39 050 3153136	
Entry	February 8, 2002	
Date	2001-9-30	
Туре	Technical Report	
Language	Brechish	
Pages	1	
Subject(s): Keywords	Unsupervised image restoration:Blind image restoration;Edge-preserving regularization:Markov Random Fields	
Subject(s): ACM	1.4.4 [Image Processing]: Restarction; I.4.6 [Image Processing]: Segmentation – Edge and feature detection; G.1.3 [Numerical Linear Algebra]: Sparse, structured and very large systems (direct and iterative methods); G.3 [Probability and Statistice] - Probabilistic algorithms (including Monte Carlo); I.2.6 [Artificial Intelligence]: Learning: Connectionism and neural nets; Parameter learning.	

Figure 13 - Approval: Bibliographic record (1)

→ W1 : <u>1</u>	WINS IN THE
	1790 IL
ind clusters of workstations. The models are li- perations of typical parallel applications. Analy ich capture the relative influence of processor e and software components on the performan- able program and hardware characteristics, the applications in early stages of software	based ysis of ee. ic
Tarmat	
rormat	
PS	
	rformance analysis of SPMD applications exo and clusters of workstations. The models are rerations of typical parallel applications. Analy ich capture the relative influence of processor 1 and software components on the performan able program and hardware characteristics, th applications in early stages of software

Figure 14 - Approval: Bibliographic record (2)

In case of option 1) the system allows reading the document under the control of the related application . In case of option 2) the system updates the value of the approval field accordingly.

In case of option 3) the system allows the reviewer to communicate the reason of his/her decision by using the interface shown in Figure 15.

ument Reject: ercim cur jej:Feb8-1	
anone reject. of childen new obo-1	
Title: Degradation identification and model parameter estimation in	
Entry Date: February 8, 2002	
Reason:	1
B-mail: tonazzin@icipi car.rt	X
Choose an action: Send&Delete Resetthis For	m

Figure 15 - Rejecting a document

6.2 Editing of the document

The "administration" link goes to the administration interface.

The system offers the following options:

- 1. edit the bibliographic record
- 2. generate the bibliographic code
- 3. insert the document into collection
- 4. view the document
- 5. reject the document

In case of option 1) the system allows the administrator to edit the bibliographic record.

In case of option 2) the system shows a bibliographic code generated automatically:

the administrator can accept or change such a code.

Options 3-5 are described in Section 4.

7 References

[ACM98] ACM (Association for Computing Machinery) Computing Classification System (CCS), Version 1998

http://www.acm.org/class/1998

[DELOS] DELOS Working Group http://www.iei.pi.cnr.it/DELOS/

[DublinCore] Dublin Core Metadata Element Set: Resource Page http://purl.org/metadata/dublincore

[ETRDL] S. Biagioni, J. Borbinha, R. Ferber, P. Hansen, S. Kapidakis, L. Kovacs, F. Roos, A.M. Vercoustre, (1998). "The ERCIM Technical Reference Digital Library". In ECDL'98 Proceedings, Crete, Greece, September 1998, pp.905-906 http://www.iei.pi.cnr.it/DELOS/EDL/ETRDL98.html

[ETRDLdemo] ETRDL Demo Decription: Handout distributed ERCIM 10th anniversary, Amsterdam, 4-5 November,1999 http://www.iei.pi.cnr.it/DELOS/EDL/handout99/handout99.html

[Lagoze1] C. Lagoze, E. Shaw, J. R. Davis and D.B. Krafft, Dienst: Implementation Reference Manual, Cornell Computer Science Technical Report TR95-1514 http://cs-tr.cscornell.edu:80/Dienst/UI/2.0/Describe/ncstrl.cornell/tr96-1595

[Lagoze2] C. Lagoze, J. R. Davis Dienst: an Architecture for Distributed Document Libraries, Communications of the ACM, 38 (4) April 1995, page 45.

[MdublinCore] Multilingual Dublin Core http://www.cs.ait.ac.th/~tbaker/dc-multilingual.html

[MSC91] AMS (American Mathematical Society) Mathematics Subject Classification (MSC), Version 1991 http://www.ams.org/msc/home.html

[NCSTRL] Networked Computer Science Technical Report Library http://www.ncstrl.org

[NCSTRLDOC] NCSTRL documentation http://www.ncstrl.org/Dienst/htdocs/dienst_user_help/about-ncstrl. html

[SUBMIT] A. Andreoni, C. Carlesi and P. Pagano, ETRDL Submit User Guide. CNR Project Report, B4-09, March 1999. http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it/Dienst/UI/2.0/Describe/ercim.cnr.iei/1999-B4-09-03?tiposearch=cnr&langver=en

[RFC1807] http://www.cis.ohio-state.edu/htbin/rfc/rfc1807.html



ETRDL Submit Service User Guide

Maria Bruna Baldacci Stefania Biagioni Carlo Carlesi

IEI - CNR

ETRDL is a digital library management system that provides access to a distributed collection of digital documents, consisting of a set of the local collections. These are published by the institutions participating in the digital library and are maintained on local servers.

ETRDL functionality regards searching and browsing ERCIM collections to retrieval existing documents, submitting new documents in a specific collection and administer the ERCIM collections via a Web user interface. The aim of this document is to present an user guide for the information seekers that want to browse the ETRDL collections and search documents in one or more selected collections..3

D-Lib – The Digital Library Competence Center is funded by the IST Programme of the European Union (project no. IST-2001-32587). Scientific coordinator: IEI-CNR (Pisa, Italy).



Table of Contents

1 INTRODUCTION	46
2 PRELIMINARIES	47
2.1 TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS	47
2.2 FORMAL REQUIREMENTS	47
3 USER GUIDE	48
3.1 HOW TO START	49
3.1.1 Help on line	51
3.2 HOW TO SUBMIT A NEW DOCUMENT	52
3.2.1 Submission Procedure	53
4 SYNTAX AND SEMANTICS OF BIBLIOGRAPHIC FIELDS	55.

Table of pictures

FIGURE 3-1 THE CENTRALISED HOME PAGE.	48
FIGURE 3-2 LOCAL HOME PAGE	49
FIGURE 3-3 CHOOSE LOCAL LANGUAGE USER INTERFACE.	51
FIGURE 3-4 ETRDL HELP ON LINE AND DOCUMENTATION. THE HOME PAGE	51
FIGURE 3-5 SUBMIT PROCEDURE HELP ON LINE.	52
FIGURE 3-6 THE "ABSTRACT ONLY" CHECKBOX.	54
FIGURE 3-7 THE SUMMARY PAGE: "CONFIRM", "GO BACK" AND "DISCARD" BUTTONS.	54
FIGURE 4-1 DOCUMENT SUBMISSION FORM: TITLE, AUTHOR(S), E-MAIL AND TEL.	
BIBLIOGRAPHIC FIELD.	56
FIGURE 4-2 TYPE FREE KEYWORDS AND THE CLICK ON THE '+' BUTTON TO ADD ANOTHER	2
FIELD	56
FIGURE 4-3 COPY ACM CODES AND DESCRIPTORS FROM THE ACM SCHEME AND PASTE	
THEM IN THE ACM FIELDS.CLICK THE '+' BUTTON TO ADD ANOTHER FIELD	57
FIGURE 4-4 CHOOSE YOUR COLLECTION AND THEN TYPE THE DOCUMENT ABSTRACT. IF	
YOUR DOCUMENT HAS TWO ABSTRACTS ALSO SELECT THE LANGUAGE OF THE	
SECOND ABSTRACT	58
FIGURE 4-5 FILL IN THE DATE FIELD AND SELECT THE DOCUMENT TYPE AND THE	
DOCUMENT LANGUAGE.	59
FIGURE 4-6 IF YOU WANT TO SEND YOUR DOCUMENT, SELECT YOUR FILE BY BROWSING	
YOUR SYSTEM AND SELECT THE FILE FORMAT	.60.

1 Introduction

ETRDL is a digital library management system that provides access to a distributed collection of digital documents, consisting of a set of the local collections. These are published by the institutions participating in the digital library and are maintained on local servers.

This guide is addressed to the authors/librarians who want to submit their new documents to the collection pertaining to their institution via a Web user interface. Authors are assumed to be moderately experienced with Web browsing.

Instructions for how to use the ETRDL Submit User Interface are organised in the following sections:

• Preliminaries (technical and formal requirements for document submission and instructions about subject indexing and documents classification)

• User Guide (how to start and how to submit a new document to ETRDL and where to find help to do this)

• Syntax and Semantics of Bibliographic Fields (a quick reference to the syntax and semantics of each bibliographic field).

2 Preliminaries

2.1 Technical Requirements

You can access ETRDL via Web, this means that you can use which kind of computer and operating system you prefer. To submit your own documents to the ETRDL you must:

- Have Internet access availability
- Have some knowledge of Web browsing

• Have a Web browser such as Netscape Navigator (version 3.0 or later) or MS Internet Explorer (version 4.0 or later).

2.2 Formal Requirements

To submit your own documents to the ETRDL you must:

- Be an authorised member of the institutions publishing documents in ETRDL
- Have some documents to submit in digital format (PS, PDF, HTML, TXT, TIFF)

3 User Guide

In the following, examples refer to the ETRDL system as instantiated for the ERCIM Institutions. (see the companion publication "D-lib Center, ETRDL Search and Browse User Guide").ETRDL Submit User Guide



Figure 3-1 The centralised home page.

The user who accesses the system through the centralised home page can access a local server by clicking one of the Institution logos which are shown in the main picture or he/she can use the Institution hyperlink in the left frame.

For example if you are a member of GMD when you click the GMD logo or the GMD hyperlink you access to the GMD local server.

-		Netscape: IEI	-ETRDL		
File Edit View Go	Communicator		18		Heip
Back Forward Release	i Home Search	👫 🎿 Guide Print	Security Sta	P	N
🛛 🌿 Bookmarks 🦑 Loc	ation: http://dienst.jel.p	l.cnr.JV			
CNR Italian Nat Research	ional Courcil of	ERCIM European Consortiur and Mathe	Research n for Informatics matics	Ö Ü	NCSTRL Networked Computer Science Technical Reference Library
	ERCIM Tec	hnical <mark>R</mark> efer	ence <mark>D</mark> igit	al Library	
		[Italian	1		
CNR, CWI, FORTH, GMD, INF ETRDL is a European branch o	Search / Brov Search / Brov Search / Brov Search / Brov	11 omputer Science Tech <u>vse</u> NCSTR <u>vse</u> ERCIM <u>vse</u> local co	Inical Reference Lk L collection collection llection	rary (NCSTRL). 1	
	Submit a doc	ument / <u>Wit</u> l	ndraw a do	cument	hade de
To scence this	and the next hind payee	This is Dienst Ver you have to use a w	sion 4.1.9 ab browser with th	* Javasovipt lange	ange enpshiliky.
\bigtriangledown		, HELP On Lin	2	A	
<u>contract/ressists</u>	<u>474</u>			DID-Ares	tia Italia ana 👘 😿 🐇

Figure 3-2 Local home page.

Depending on the local server selected, the user is also given a choice of language, as most local servers will maintain interfaces in English and in the local language.

The local home page interface caters simultaneously for two user classes: information seekers and information providers by offering two main options: search/browse any collection; submit/withdraw a document to/from a local collection. From the local home pages, the search and browse functions can be activated over the entire NCSTRL collection, over the ERCIM collection, or over the collection(s) of the local institution. In each case, the user is not only accessing a different collection (or sub-collection), but is provided with a different perspective on the information, depending on the functions that have been implemented at that particular level. When searching on the ERCIM or the local collections, the user can switch between user interfaces in English or his/her own language. On-line helps in both languages are available.

3.1 How to start.

ETRDL collection of CNR is distributed and consists of the set of the local CNR collections.

Searching and browsing these collections is possible by accessing to them from any ETRDL server.

Only authorised users can submit new documents to ETRDL. These users are members of participating institutions and they can submit their documents only to their own collection by accessing their institution server. Particularly each CNR authors must submit his/her documents by accessing a CNR server as shown in Table 1.

Institutions	ServerURL	Server Physical location
Area della Ricerca (Palermo)		
Istituto CNUCE (Pisa)	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
Istituto di Analisi Numerica (Pavia)	htpp://exlibris.ian.pv.cnr.it	CNR-IAN
Istituto di Cibernetica (Napoli)		
Istituto di Elaborazione dei Segnali e delle Immagini (Bari)	htpp://nettuno.iesi.ba.cnr.it	CNR-IESI
Istituto di Elaborazione della Informazione (Pisa)	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
Istituto di FisicaCosmica con Applicazioni all'Informatica (Palermo		
Istituto di Linguistica Computazionale (Pisa)	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
Istituto di Matematica Computazionale	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
(Pisa)		
Istituto di Ricercasulle Onde Elettromagnetiche (Firenze)		CNR-IROE
Istituto di Studi sulla Ricerca e sulla Documentazione Scientifica (Roma)	http://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
Istituto di Tecnologie Didattiche e Formative (Palermo)		
Istituto per la Documentazione Giuridica (Firenze)	htpp://dienst.iei.pi.cnr.it	CNR-IEI
Istituto per la Matematica Applicata (Genova)	htpp://exlibris.ian.pv.cnr.it	CNR-IAN
Istituto per le Applicazioni della Metamatica e dell'Informatica (Milano)	htpp://exlibris.ian.pv.cnr.it	CNR-IAN

 Table 1 CNR servers.

Please note that the ETRDL digital library instantiated for the D-Lib courses allows the submit service be delivered only by the CNR-IEI server. Users can submit their documents only to the CNR-IEI local library.

The ETRDL has a bilingual user interface. When you access the ETRDL local home page the system shows you the English user interface. To switch to the Italian user interface you must click on the hyperlink below the title of the home page.

ERCIM European Research Consortium for Informatics and Mathematica ERCIM Technical Reference Digital	NCSTRL Netvorked Computer Science Technical Reference Library
ERCIM Technical Reference Digital	Libray
ERCIM Technical Reference Digital	
	Library
[Italian]	

Figure 3-3 Choose local language user interface.

3.1.1 Help on line

During the document submission users can access two kinds of help directly from the submission page: the procedure help and bibliographic fields help.



Figure 3-4 Submit procedure help on line.



Figure 3-5 ETRDL help on line and documentation. The home page.

3.2 How to submit a new document

Before starting the submission procedure, the author must have all required information to fill in the bibliographic record form and the document file (or files) to send to ETRDL.

Bibliographic record consists of obligatory and optional fields. Some of these fields may be obligatory or optional depending on the context.

Bibliographic fields are shown in Table 2.- (For syntax and semantics, see Sect. 4)

Obligatory fields		Optional fields
Title		Telephone
Author		Local language abstract
E-mail		Language of Local language abstract
		(become obligatory if the above field has been filled in)
Publisher		
Subject	Free Keywords	
	Computing Classification System (ACM)	
	Mathematics Subject Classification (MSC)	
Englishabstract		
Date		
Туре		
Language		

 Table 2 Obligatory and optional bibliographic fields.

The author can use different file formats:

- PS
 - ✤ A postscript level 2 file.
- PDF
 - An Portable Document Format file.
- TXT
 - ♦ A text file.

• HTML, GIF, JPEG

- One or more HTML, GIF and/or JPEG files.
- The main HTML document must be entered as first file; automatically the system will change the name of the first file in "index.html".
- Other HTML, GIF and JPEG files linked to the main HTML document must be at the same level directory of it.
- Always use relative paths to link files and remember to refer the main document as "index.html".
- TIFF
 - One or more TIFF files.

The following section describes the steps that authors in the ERCIM community should follow to submit a document to the DL administrator. Completion of these steps will result in the presentation of the document to the system administrator for submission in the ETRDL database.

3.2.1 Submission Procedure

From the main page the user must select the "Submit a Document" option and start the submission procedure as follows:

- 1. Compile a bibliographic record for the new document by filling in the fields on the form presented by the system (for syntax and semantics, see Sect. 4). The system will perform an automatic check on the formal correctness of the contents of the obligatory fields. Instructions to guide the user in the correct compilation of a field can be obtained by clicking on the name of that field.
- 2. If a document consists of just the Abstract, click on the checkbox to move on to point No. 5.



Figure 3-6 The "Abstract Only" checkbox.

- 3. Select the file containing the document to be transferred to the server, using the Browse option.
- 4. Indicate the format of the file by using the pulldown menu. The permitted formats are:
 - PS
 - PDF
 - TXT
 - HTML
 - TIFF

5.

- When the form has been filled in, click on one of the following buttons:
- Submit the form, to confirm the data and continue with the procedure
- Clear the form, to cancel the content of all the fields.
- 6. If the user has chosen Submit the form, the data submitted will be displayed. In this way, the user can check that the values are correct. One of the following options must then be chosen:
 - Confirm, to send the bibliographic record and document to the System Administrator
 - Go Back, to return to the form and correct any mistakes
 - Discard, to cancel the entire document submission procedure and go back to the homepage See Figure 3-7.

C.2.1 Network Architecture and Design; C.2.2 Network Protocols; C.2.3 Network Operations	
mydoc.ps	
click here Confirm mission form Go Back n Discard	
itional assistance, contact Librarian Homepage	
8 💥 🕮 📣 🖬 🏑	
	C.2.1 Network Architecture and Design; C.2.2 Network Protocols; C.2.3 Network Operations mydoc.ps click here Confirm Confirm nission form Go Back a Discard itional assistance, contact Librarian International Homepage.

Figure 3-7 The summary page: "Confirm", "Go Back" and "Discard" buttons.

If the file type selected at point No. 3 is either HTML or TIFF, the system allows the user to submit a new file as follows: i) select the file using the Browse option and ii) confirm the selection with Submit a new file. 7. If the file type selected at point No. 3 is HTML, the new file can be in HTML, GIF or JPEG.

8. If the file type selected at point No. 3 is TIFF, the new file must also be in TIFF.

The procedure described above at point No.7 is recursive and is terminated using the Confirm option described in point 6.

4 Syntax and Semantics of Bibliographic Fields

In this section syntax and semantics of each bibliographic field is described. Users must read carefully this section before submit their documents in order to insert a correct bibliographic record in ETRDL. The system will perform an automatic check on the formal correctness of the contents of the obligatory fields. Anyway, the respect of submission rules allows maintaining a digital library in which documents retrieval is easy and without misunderstanding.

Field name	Description	
	This is the title of the work as assigned by the author.	
	This field should include the complete title with all the subtitles, if any.	
Title	Format: <free text=""></free>	
The	Example:	
	Real-Time Multiprocessor Systems: Performability Evaluation	
	Obligatory field	
	The name of the author(s) of the document.	
	If there is one author for the document, use the following syntax:	
	Last-Name, First-Name	
	Example:	
	Rossi, Mario	
Author(s)	Otherwise, if there is more than one author, use the following syntax:	
	Last Name1, First-Name1 and Last-Name2, First-Name2 and Last- Name3, First-Name3 and	
	Example:	
	Rossi, Mario and Bianchi, Paolo and Verdi, Carlo	
	Obligatory field	
	The e-mail address of the person to be contacted with respect to the document. Enter the address with the following syntax:	
E-mail	name@domain	
	Obligatory field	
Telephone	The telephone number of the person to be contacted with respect to the document.	
	Optional field	

Example

Document To submit your document to If you need help for any field All fields are mandatory, exc Bibliographic record	t Submission Form the Diensel server via HTTP, please fill in the following form. , please click <u>here</u> . rept for the telephone number.	7
<u>Title:</u>	Introduzione al multicast e alla comunicazione multimediale :	-/
<u>Author(s):</u>	Bonito, Antonio-Blasco and Pobric, Damir	
Submission contact	e-mail: a.bonito@cnuce.cnr.it Tel.:	

Figure 4-1 Document Submission Form: Title, Author(s), e-mail and Tel. bibliographic field.

Field name	Description	
	A field for uncontrolled terms, e.g. for relatively new concepts, proper names of systems, etc., chosen freely by the author or the compiler of the bibliographic record (normally in English).	
Free	Each field must contain keywords for a single concept.	
Keywords	The field can be repeated: a new field is obtained by clicking on the "+" button.	
(cabjeet)	Format: <free text=""></free>	
	Example: digital libraries	
	ATTENTION: at least one of three subject fields must be filled in.	
Example		
1000		
5	Free Keywords:	
~	Digital library	
Subject(s):	Computing Classification System (ACM)	
Subjects		
-	Mathematics Subject Classification (MNC)	
Figure 4-2 Type free keywords and the click on the '+' button to add another field.		

Field name	Description	
	A field for classification codes/descriptors extracted from the ACM (Association for Computing Machinery) Computing Classification System (CCS), Version 1998.	
	The field must contain a code with its descriptor.	
	The field can be repeated to enter additional codes/descriptors: a new field is obtained by clicking on the "+" button.	
ACM (Subject)	Format : Codes/descriptors can be copied directly from the ACM schema at (http://www.acm.org/class/1998/), using copy/paste. The ": " symbol must be inserted between a coded descriptor and an uncoded one.	
	Example: D.1.5. Object-oriented Programming	
	For more details see the Error! Reference source not found. General instructions for indexing and classifying documents.	
	ATTENTION: at least one of three subject fields must be filled in.	
	Example	
Subject(3): Figure 4-3 Copy A	Subject(s): Free Keywords; Computing Classification System (ACM) C.2.1 Network Architecture and Design C.2.2 Network Protocols C.2.3 Network Operations Mathematics Subject Classification (MSC) The click and abases server Collection << * Click and abases server Collection << The click the '+' button to add another field.	
	A field for classification codes/descriptors extracted from the AMS (American Mathematical Society) Mathematics Subject Classification (MSC), Version 1991.	
	The field must contain a code with its descriptor.	
MSC	The field can be repeated to enter additional codes/descriptors: a new field is obtained by clicking on the "+" button.	
(Subject)	Format: Codes/descriptors can be copied directly from the AMS schema at http://www.ams.org/msc/home.html, using copy/paste.	
	Example: 11K50 Metric theory of continued fractions	
	For more details see Error! Reference source not found. General instructions for indexing and classifying documents.	
	ATTENTION: at least one of three subject fields must be filled in.	

Fieldname	•	Description	
English	The mus	e abstract of the document. All documents, whatever theirlanguage, st have an abstract in English.	
Abstract	Fo	rmat: <free-text></free-text>	
	Obl	ligatory field	
Local Language	If a sou	ppropriate, please also include an abstract for the document in the rce language and indicate the language using the pulldown menu.	
Abstract	Fo	rmat: <free-text></free-text>	
Language of	of Sele	ect the language using the pulldown menu.	
tne "Abstract i Local Language"	n Ob use	ligatory field , when the "Local Language Abstract" field has been d.	
Publishe	The reso mer	The organisation primarily responsible for the intellectual content of the resource. Please select the appropriate institution from the pulldown menu.	
	Obl	igatory field	
		Example	
and the second se			
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Publi	<u>sher:</u>	DEMO IEI CNR Italy	
<u>Abstract:</u>		English: This document is aimed at providing fundamental information about the implementation of multimedia network services in a Internet or Intranet environment. It is targeted to network designers and network managers who need guidance before going into widening the range of services given by their network by adding the most vecent multimedia sids to internersonal Cother language: Italian Scopo di questo documento e' fornire le informazioni fondamentali sui servizi di rete multimediali realizzabili in ambiente Internet/Intranet. Esso e' destinato principalmente ai network designer e ai network manager che necessitano di un orientamento prima di ampliare i servizi resi dalla pronria infrastrutture di vete includendo i niu' vecenti	
Figure 4-4 Cl	100se you a	r collection and then type the document abstract. If your document has a two abstracts also select the language of the second abstract.	

Field name	Description	
Language	The language in which the document is written. Default is English. Otherwise, please select the appropriate language from the pulldown menu.	
	Obligatory field	
Туре	Indicates the type of publication (Technical Report, Thesis, EC Deliverable, Proceedings, Ercim News, Preprints, Project Reports, Others) as assigned by the issuing organisation. Please select the appropriate type from the menu.	
	Obligatory field	
	The publication date (normally the date of submission to the system).	
Date	The format is Year (four digits) Month (two digits) Day (two digits) as defined in ISO 8601 (Date and time format).	
	Example: 1998-07-22	
	Obligatory field	
	Example	
Date:	Vear: 1998 - Month: 03 - Day: 03	
<u>Type:</u>	Technical Report	
Languag	e: Italian 🗢	
If you are submitting Abstract Only check here and ignore the file(s) selection.		
Figure 4-5 Fill in the date field and select the document type and the document language.		

Field name	Description	
	This is the full pathname of the local file containing the document.	
	Example: C:\Documents\my_document.ps	
FileName	Multiple files can be associated with the same bibliographic document. In this case, the file names must be entered one by one. The file(s) will be transferred to the remote server. If abstract only is selected, no file transfer will be executed.	
	Obligatory field unless only the document abstract is being inserted.	
FileFormat	Indicates the file type. Select the appropriate file type format from the menu.	
	Obligatory field unless only the document abstract is being inserted.	
	Example	
File(s) select:	ion	
Biowse your sy	stem and select your file	
<u>file nam</u>	Browse	
Submit the Form		
Figure 4-6 If you want to send your document, select your file by browsing your system and select the file format.		